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The Harris-Banks House stands on a large, half-block lot on the southwest cor­ 
ner of Seventh Street South and Second Avenue South in Columbus, Mississippi. The 
two-story, three-bay-by-five-bay frame dwelling rests on a brick foundation and is 
sheltered by a nearly flat roof. The structure is a highly individualistic and 
elaborately detailed regional expression of the Italianate style combined with 
picturesque eclecticism. Deeply paneled pilasters set at each corner of the house 
carry a simplified classical entablature with a frieze pierced to accommodate vents 
covered with cast-iron grates. The facade, or north elevation, is dominated by a 
one-and-one-half-story engaged octagonal tower that is elevated on the single-bay, 
flat-roofed portico that shelters the central entrance. A graceful, classically 
inspired arcade is set between wooden, octagonal columns clustered around the 
square supporting piers that carry the tower. On each side of the portico are 
canopy-roofed galleries with coupled, attenuated, octagonal colonnettes linked by 
a lacey, <milTworked frieze composed of Tudor arches and pierced spandrels. Flat, 
sawn balustrades enclose the galleries.

The engaged tower is lavishly detailed in the eclectic mode with paneled 
pilasters that carry a full entablature and frame the double-leafed, glazed doors 
set in four of the five exposed faces on the principal level. Shallow, scalloped 
hoods, identical to those used throughout, cap each opening. The upper half-story 
echoes the arrangement of the principal level, with truncated pilasters flanking 
the small two-by-six-light windows that carry a much richer entablature with a 
diamond-fret frieze and an overhanging cornice crowned by a sawn balustrade.

In contrast to the tower, all other bays on the facade are set in frontispieces 
that repeat the detailing of the pilasters at the corners of the house and the 
accompanying entablature. Transoms are set over the recessed, glazed upper panel, 
double-leaf doors and side lights on the first level, but are omitted on the second. 
Etched-glass glazing is used throughout in the side lights and transom.

A three-bay gallery shelters the first level of the five-bay secondary facade, 
or eastern elevation, and is detailed with mi 11 work similar to that on the galleries 
of the main facade. The southernmost bay has been enclosed to accommodate a solarium. 
A shallow pavilion emphasizes the simply detailed central entrance bay. Set above 
is a small balcony enclosed by a cast-iron balustrade and serviced by a single-leaf 
door, flanked by side lights and set in a simple frontispiece. The rear, or southern 
elevation, features a small, double-tiered gallery with giant-order, octagonal columns

The L-shaped, double-pile plan of the interior is appointed in a more restrained, 
more classically inspired manner than the exterior. The wide central hall is domi­ 
nated by a large, cantilevered dogleg staircase. To the rear of the central hall 
is a separate, secondary stair hall with a fully finished spiral staircase that 
provides access to the rear gallery. The western file of rooms contains double 
parlors, with an attached butler's pantry, which are joined by four-panel, double- 
leaf sliding doors, while the eastern file contains a library, a large cross hall, 
and a bedchamber with a separate dressing room off the rear.

Throughout the first level, battered-and-eared architraves carry a cornice, 
some of which feature applied rosettes. Handsome, richly carved grey-veined 
marble mantels are used in the three principal rooms, as are foliated, plaster 
centerpieces.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Harris-Banks House is the most distinctive Italianate-style house as well 
as one of the most elaborately detailed dwellings in Columbus, Mississippi, a com­ 
munity noted for its highly individualistic expressions of the popular antebellum 
architectural styles. The design of the house freely combines elements of the 
Grecian and the Gothic modes with towered, flat-roofed Italianate form and epito­ 
mizes the eclecticism characteristic of many Columbus-area dwellings constructed 
during the two decades prior to the Civil War. The Harris-Banks House was built 
between 1857 and 1861 by Jeptha Vining Harris, a wealthy cotton planter and states­ 
man, and it remained in the family until 1967.

Jeptha Vining Harris (1816-1899), a native of Elbert County, Georgia, came 
to Mississippi in the early 1840s. He and several of his brothers and cousins 
were attracted to the area by the fertile lands in the recently acquired Choctaw 
cession. Harris purchased a considerable amount of cultivable land in the fertile 
Black Prairie region west of Columbus. He soon became one of the region's leading 
citizens, serving as a state senator from 1859 to 1861.

Situated on the eastern bank of the navigable Tombigbee River, Columbus be­ 
came the financial, commercial, and social center of the productive, plantation- 
dominated Black Prairie region after the 1830 Treaty of Dancing Rabbit Creek, 
which opened the lands west of Columbus for settlement. Like many other wealthy 
planters, Harris and his family preferred life in the burgeoning community of 
Columbus to their isolated, rural plantations. In 1852, he purchased the "east 
half of Square Ten" in New Town (Moore's 1830 survey) from Thomas Christian 
(Deed Book 27:32).

With its rich and eclectic detailing added to the somewhat naive conception 
of a towered, Italianate villa, the Harris-Banks House is stylistically unique. 
One of only two houses in Columbus with a cross hall, it stands virtually unaltered 
with most of its nineteenth-century furnishings, including numerous Cornelius 
chandeliers and an impressive, walnut Renaissance Revival library suite built 
for the house, making it a valuable repertory of nineteenth-century decorative 
arts and an example of the mid-century fascination with the picturesque.

In 1873, the house was purchased by Mrs. Harris's brother, James Oliver 
Banks, a successful planter from Alabama. The Harris-Banks House remained the 
residence of his widow and his daughter, Lucy Banks Maxwell, until 1967, when the 
house and its furnishings were sold to Mr. and Mrs. Ned Hardin (Personal interview, 
Lucy Banks).
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7 - DESCRIPTION

The octagonal tower is not expressed on the first level but rather serves as 
a story-and-a-half solarium off the northern end of the central hall on the second 
level. A simple, spiral staircase set along the western wall of the tower chamber 
provides access to the upper half-story and the roof. The other rooms of the 
second level repeat the arrangement of the first.

Located immediately behind the southwest corner of the house are a late 
nineteenth-century, two-bay kitchen built of pressed brick and an interesting 
frame outbuilding. The latter is set on a high brick foundation over a cellar 
which is reached by a central bulkhead opening.
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